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ADDENDUM No. 1 
 

RFP No. 19-13 
 

WWTP Tertiary Filter Clear Well Improvement Project 
 

Due: June 13, 2019 by 2:00 p.m. (local time) 
 
The following changes, additions, and/or deletions shall be made to the Request for Proposal for 
WWTP Tertiary Filter Clear Well Improvement Project, RFP No. 19-13, on which proposals will 
be received on/or before the date and time listed above. 
 
The information contained herein shall take precedence over the original documents and all 
previous addenda (if any), and is appended thereto. This Addendum includes 17 pages. 
 
The Proposer is to acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1, including all attachments 
in its Proposal by so indicating in the proposal that the addendum has been received. 
Proposals submitted without acknowledgement of receipt of this addendum may be 
considered non-conforming. 
 
The following forms provided within the RFP Document must be included in submitted 
proposal: 
 

 Attachment B - Non-Discrimination Declaration of Compliance 
 Attachment C - Living Wage Declaration of Compliance 
 Attachment D - Vendor Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form 

 
Proposals that fail to provide these forms listed above upon proposal opening will be 
rejected as non-responsive and will not be considered for award. 
 
 
I. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following Questions have been received by the City.  Responses are being provided in 
accordance with the terms of the RFP.  Respondents are directed to take note in its review of the 
documents of the following questions and City responses as they affect work or details in other 
areas not specifically referenced here. 
 
1. Can the City provide a copy of the NPDES permit? 

RESPONSE:  Copies of the previous NPDES permit and the new permit currently being 
contested by the City of Ann Arbor will be made available to Pre-Bid Meeting attendees 
via the City’s Liquid Files FTP site.   
 

2. Pre-Bid Meeting Attendee List. 
RESPONSE:  The Pre-Bid Meeting Attendee list is attached. 

 
3. Are there month(s) when secondary effluent quality would not meet final effluent permit limits? 

RESPONSE:  Although infrequent, there may be instances when secondary effluent 
does not meet final plant effluent limits; however, not operating the filters in itself 
would be a permit violation.  Consequently, the filters are used at all times and the plant 
wishes to operate one clear well and associated filters at all times during this project.    
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4. Is Ann Arbor going to require all secondary effluent be filtered?  Or, is a by-pass plan 
acceptable should it be needed? 
RESPONSE:  The City of Ann Arbor intends to operate one clear well and associated 
filters up to their design capacity of 3 MGD each at all times.  A by-pass or flow 
equalization plan will be needed for plant flows that exceed available filter capacity.   

 
5. Does Ann Arbor have preferred construction months for this project based (i.e., when each 

filter bank/clear well is taken offline)? 
RESPONSE:  The City does not have specific months for construction in mind.  The 
proposed construction schedule must take into account times of the year when daily 
flows are higher than a bank of six filters can process.  Monthly WWTP effluent flow 
data for 2018 is attached for your reference. 

 
6. Will this be a “cash” or loan/bond financed project?   

RESPONSE:  This is a Capital Improvement Project and will be cash funded.   
 
7. Can you provide hardness and TDS data for the effluent in the clear well? 

RESPONSE:  Effluent hardness is only tested once per year.  Review of data for the 
past several years revealed the hardness to typically range from 230 to 310 mg/l as 
CaCO3.  Total dissolved solids (TDS) is not tested.  

 
8. Do you maintain any chlorine residual in the clear well?  What chlorine residual do you 

maintain? 
RESPONSE:  The WWTP has been using ultraviolet disinfection (UV) since December 
2000.  During construction of the UV system, for roughly a 12-month period, sodium 
hypochlorite was added to the clear wells for disinfection.  The chlorine dosage was 
maintained in the range of 0.5 to 0.7 mg/l.  There is currently capability to add chlorine 
to the backwash but is has been used less than five times since 2000.  Backwash water 
is directed to the backwash waste water tank and returned to the retention basin. 
 

9. Can you provide the PowerPoint As-Built Drawings for 1977 structural and 1997 again?  The 
files that were provided after the pre-bid meeting seem to be corrupt after I downloaded them. 
RESPONSE:  PDF’s of the PowerPoint As-Built Drawings for 1977 structural and 1997 
Filter projects will made available to the Pre-Bid Meeting attendees via the City’s Liquid 
Files FTP site.  
 

10. Prior to installation of UV, was a chlorine residual maintained in the clear well?  What were 
the typical high and l residual level? 
RESPONSE:  Please see response to question #8. 
 

 
Offerors are responsible for any conclusions that they may draw from the information contained 
in the Addendum. 
































